Mar 11 08 09:50a Minnesott Beach Town Hall 252 248-028S p.l

Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners’ Meseting
February 10, 2009

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners, Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, February 10, 2009 at 7:00 p.m., at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Joshua Potter, Commissioners Charles Salter, David Stewart,
Eber Warren, and Larry Whorton.

MEMBER ABSENT: None

OTHERS PRESENT: Ken Heath, Tim Fowler, Dot Lord, Barbara Gould, Paul Abare, and
Kathy Enzerink of the Pamlico News.

Mayor Potter called the meeting to order by having a moment of silence.

Mayor Potter called for discussion regarding any revision to the proposed agenda.
Commissioner Warren made a motion to accept the agenda. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Warren made a motion to accept the minutes of the January 13, 2009 meeting as
written. All ayes. Motion passed.

During public comment, Mr. Paul Abare addressed the Board regarding Wayfarers Cove. He
expressed concern on behalf of the ten lot owners on the lack of action being taken by the
Atlanta based group on the infrastructure and these lot owners having property they cannot build
on or sell. Mr. Abare inquired about the possibility of the Town imposing a bond or fine on the
developer for lack of production. He expressed concern that nothing was being done by the
Town on behalf of these property owners and they were going to try and make it to next months
meeting. Mayor Potter advised that the Board of Commissioners became aware of this situation
in March of 2008 and that action had been taken which resulted in the Town being sued. Mr.
Abare inquired of the Town taking action against the developers. The Mayor responded that on
the advice of the Towns attorney, no action was being taken at this time. Commissioner Whorton
asked Mr. Abare if the lot owners had considered filing a lawsuit against the developers and
discussion followed regarding this matter. Mr. Abare reiterated that the lot owners would like
the Board of Commissioners to advocate for them.

Commissioner Whorton then made a motion to recess the meeting for a public hearing regarding
the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter declared the public hearing in session. In as there were no comments from the
public, Planning Board Chairman Tim Fowler presented the UDO to the Board of
Commissioners for acceptance on behalf of the Town. Mr. Fowler explained that the UDO was a
combination of the Town’s Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision Ordinance, and was also now
available electronically. Commissioner Whorton then made a motion to close the public hearing.
All ayes. Motion passed.

1of4



Mar 11 08 08:50a Minnesott Beach Town Hall 252 2489-0285 p.2
February 10, 2009

Mayor Potter declared the meeting back in regular session. Commissioner Whorton made a
motion that the Board of Commissioners adopt the UDO as presented by the Planning Board.
All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter noted that other matters to be addressed under Unfinished Business were as
follows:

Commissioner Whorton presented the issue of the Zoning Administrator position. He noted that
the position had been advertised and only one application received, that of Mr. Jeff Bland.
Commissioner Whorton made a motion that Mr. Bland be hired as the Zoning Administrator and
be paid at the same rate as the Town Clerk for time actually worked and mileage, effective today.
All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Whorton advised that he and Commissioner Stewart, as requested at the last
meeting of the Board of Commissioners, have drafted a policy for recognition guidelines of
prominent community individuals. Commissioner Whorton recommended a policy as follows:
It shall be the policy of the Town of Minnesott Beach that no tax funds shall be expended
specifically for recognition purposes. The word “specifically” in this policy conveys that the
Town of Minnesott Beach will incur no additional cost in any reco gnition effort that the Town
would not normally bear during the conduct of day to day business. Commissioner Whorton
then followed this with examples. Commissioner Whorton made a motion to adopt this policy
for recognition. All ayes. Motion passed. A copy of this policy has been placed in the
Minnesott Beach Town Hall policy folder.

Commissioner Whorton presented information regarding the status of the Wayfarers Cove.
Commissioner Whorton advised that Mayor Josh Potter, Planning Board Chairman Tim Fowler
and he met the Town’s attorney and the attorney assigned to the case by the North Carolina
League of Municipalities (NCLM). He stated they went through all the paragraphs of the lawsuit
and discussed the history of Wayfarers Cove. Commissioner Whorton expressed his confidence
in the attorney handling the case.

Commissioner Warren addressed the Board regarding the selection of a new Town Clerk. Tt was
noted that the Board of Commissioners had stated that preference should be given to applicants
from Minnesott Beach. Commissioner Warren advised that the selection made by the Town
Manager was not a resident of Minnesott Beach but was deemed to be the most qualified.
Commissioner Warren then read the recommendation of the Town Manager to hire Ms. Charlene
Lamb. Commissioner Warren made a motion to accept Ms. Lamb as the Town Clerk.

Following some discussion, Commissioners Salter, Stewart and Warren voted aye and
Commissioner Whorton voted nay. Motion passed.

An update on the fire insurance rating was presented by Commissioner Salter. He said a date of
March 9, 2010 was locked in the books for the evaluation and it would probably last a week.
Commissioner Salter then furnished information as to the measures the Fire Department is taking
in preparation for the evaluation. Discussion followed regarding increasing the water pressure in
Minnesott Beach with County Commissioner Ken Heath providing some input but noting that
nothing definite had been decided.

20of4



Mar 11 08 08:50a Minnesott Beach Town Hall 252 248-0285 .3

February 10, 2009

Issues under New Business were as follows:

Commissioner Whorton noted that under the newly adopted UDO it is stated that fees would
apply as in accordance with the Minnesott Beach fee schedule. Commissioner Whorton stated
that some of these fees have not been updated in many years. Commissioner Whorton advised
that he did not feel that some items currently listed on the fee schedule were applicable any
longer since these items are available on the Town’s web page. Commissioner Whorton
suggested canvassing other jurisdictions to get an idea of their current fees. Commissioner
Whorton made a motion to task the Town Manager to obtain requested information for
availability at the next meeting of the Board of Commissioners. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Salter stated that he had contact with Mr. Frank Ormond who had purchased the
lot on Country Club Drive where the old motel had been located. Commissioner Salter noted
that when the curbing had been put in previously, no driveway had been put in for that lot and
Mr. Ormond was now requesting that the Board of Commissioners approve for the Town to pay
for a driveway for this lot. Mayor Potter noted that when the curbing was put in the motel was
defunct and under the current ordinances the site could not be built upon due to the lot size thus
there was no need for a driveway. Discussion followed as to whether the lot was to be combined
with Mr. Ormond’s current adjacent lot or what use was planned for the lot. No action was taken
and this matter tabled until additional information could be obtained.

Mayor Potter requested Commissioner Reports.

Commissioner Warren presented account balances as of January 31, 2008 for the checking,
money market and NCCMT accounts.

Commissioner Stewart presented an example of the Community Watch program in action. He
reaffirmed that individuals should contact the Sheriff’s Dept. regarding suspicious persons or
activity within the community.

Commissioner Salter queried County Commissioner Heath regarding any action being taken by
the County Commissioners as it relates to the current insurance increases. Commissioner Heath
advised that a letter is being sent by the County opposing the increase and recommended that
every Town send a letter. It was the consensus of the Board of Commissioners that a letter
would be sent from Minnesott Beach.

Commissioner Salter said two new street signs, Country Club Drive W. and Minnesott Beach
Road, had arrived from the county and were being installed. It was noted that these signs are
larger than normal and inquiries had been made as to obtaining more manageable size signs.

Under Miscellaneous Information, Commissioner Warren provided information regarding dead
foxes being found in the community. He noted that upon investigation there was no indication of
health issues or violence and thought they may have been poisoned. Another possibility
discussed by Commissioner Warren was that it could be distemper which could be passed onto
domestic pets. Commissioner Warren discussed the impact that spreading poison could have on

3o0f4



Mar 11 08 089:50a Minnesott Beach Town Hall 252 248-0285S p.4
February 10, 2009

domesticated pets and the dangers to both the community and the animals from people feeding
wild animals.

Mayor Potter noted the following had been received:

A letter from NCLM regarding insurance for coverage when using rented property: he
suggested Commissioner Stewart may want to look into that further for the next meeting.

A letter received from the Dept. of Transportation requesting input concerning State
roads.

A request to join the Pamlico Chamber of Commerce: it was noted that since it was voted
not to join last year that the Town would follow suit this year.

A request for an appointee to the Eastern Carolina Council: there were no volunteers.

A request from Pamlico County Historical Society canvassing for brick purchases, no
interest evolved from last request, still no interest.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

S

/ Catherine Hurm, Town Manager

4 of 4



